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15 Princeton Place

(Thereupon, the reporter marked City's Exhibits A
through € for identification.)

MR. WALKER: This hearing is called to
order. My name is Lehman walker, I'm the Building
commissioner of the City of university City, Missouri.
The purpose of this hearing is to make a determination
as to whether or not the structure located at
15 princeton in the City of uUniversity City is in such
a state that it is a nuance and detrimental to the
health, safety and welfare of the residents of the City
of University City.

The notice for this hearing sets the time
for the hearing at 10:00 a.m. Let the record show it
is now 10:10 a.m. and the following persons represent-
ing the property are present. will you please identify
yourselves for the record. May I have those represent-
ing the property stand up and give your name and ad-
dress so it can be recorded for the record.

MS. PERVIS: My name is Deborah Pervis.
My address is 18 Blaytonn Lane, St. Louis, 63124,

MS. QUEATHEM: My name 1is Elaine Queathem.
My address is 1512 Strawberry Glen Court, Ballwin,
Missouri. '

MS. NOLAN:
Interior Solutions.

Elizabeth Nolan, Nolan
The address is 18 Blaytonn Lane,

63124.

MR. WALKER: May I have the city inspec-
tion staff stand and give your name for the record.

MR. AGEE: My name is Jared Agee.

MR. HOLDENRIED: My name is Eugene
Holdenried. Property maintenance.

MS. KIRKWOOD: Hearl Kirkwood, Property
Maintenance Inspector.

MR. WALKER: will the representatives of
the property, as well as the inspection staff please
stand and be sworn in by the court reporter.

(Thereupon, all witnesses having an interest in
in this matter were duly sworn to tell the truth.)

MR. WALKER: The first witness is
Ms. Hearl Kirkwood, Lead Housing Inspector of the City
of university City. Please state your name and occu-
pation.

MS. KIRKWOOD: Hearl Kirkwood, Lead
Housing and Property Maintenance Inspector.

MR. WALKER: I will hand you what has been
marked as City's Exhibit A and ask if you recognize it
and if so, what is it?

MS. KIRKWOOD: It's the Title Letter
Report.

MR. WALKER: Does it indicate the name of
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the company that prepared the title letter?
MS. KIRKWOOD: Investors Title Company.
MR. WALKER: what property is described
in City's Exhibit A?

MS. KIRKWOOD: No. 15 Princeton Avenue.

MR. WALKER: what is the date of the re-
port?

MS. KIRKWOOD: The date of this report is
January 25.

MR. WALKER: Wwho is shown as the owner of
record?

MS. KIRKWOOD: Deborah P. Pervis.

MR. WALKER: Are there any other parties

shown as having an interest in the property?

MS. KIRKWOOD: Yes, the bank. Pulaski
Bank.

MR. WALKER: Does anyone present wish to
examine what has been marked as City's Exhibit A?

Seeing none, City's Exhibit A is entered
into evidence.

I will hand you what has been marked as
City's Exhibit B and ask if you recognize it and if so,
what is it?

MS. KIRKWOOD: The Notice of Nuisance
Hearing order. ’

MR. WALKER:
in the document?
MS. KIRKWOOD:
MR. WALKER:
pared and mailed?
MS. KIRKWOOD: Yes.
MR. WALKER: was the notice sent by cert-
ified mail to all parties listed in city's Exhibit A as
having an interest in the property?
MS. KIRKWOOD: Yes.
MR. WALKER: Were returned receipts re-
ceived from all parties to whom the notice was sent?
MS. KIRKWOOD: Only one.
MR. WALKER: Do you know if the property
was posted and by whom?
MS. KIRKWOOD: It was posted by myself
and Gene Holdenried on February the 2nd.
MR. WALKER: Does anyone present wish to
examine what has been marked as City's Exhibit B?
Seeing none, City's Exhibit B is entered
into evidence.
I will now hand you what has been marked
as City's Exhibit € and ask if you recognize it and if
so, what is it?
MS. KIRKWOOD:

what property is described

No. 15 Princeton.
Did you cause it to be pre-

It's an Affidavit of Pub- 5w
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9

Tication from the Countian Newspaper.

MR. WALKER: Did you cause it to be pub-
1ished?

MS. KIRKWOOD: Yes, I did.

MR. WALKER: what is shown as the date of
publication?

MS. KIRKWOOD: February 16.

MR. WALKER: Does the affidavit show that

a copy of the Nuisance of Hearing was published, and
does it notice everyone that is shown in City's Exhibit
A as having an interest in the property?
MS. KIRKWOOD: Yes, it does.
MR. WALKER: Does anyone present wish to
examine what has been marked as City's Exhibit C?
Seeing none, City's Exhibit C is entered

into evidence.

Ms. Kirkwood, when did you inspect the
property?

MS. KIRKWOOD: The property was inspected
on February 22.

MR. WALKER: can you describe the condi-

tion of the property at that time?

MS. KIRKWOOD: The structure is in an
unsafe condition. The roof structure is basically
gone. There is some sheathing that's left on the roof,

10

it's falling off and the wind is blowing it off.
There's a big hole in the masonry wall to the basement
and the bearing wall for the basement, and that's un-
sound. The basement had been dug out at one time, and
that's going to pose a problem.

The house is open to the elements from
the roof. Most of the interior walls have taken on
water, because there is no roof covering. There's a
first floor porch that's been removed and the entrance-

way needs to be properly secured.
MR. WALKER: I will hand you what has
been marked as City's Exhibit D, these are photographs
of the property. Did you personally take the photo-
graphs?
MS. KIRKWOOD: Some of these were taken
by myself, and some were taken by Tom Kennedy.
MR. WALKER: Do the photographs accurate-
Ty depict the actual condition of the property as you
have described it in your testimony?
MS. KIRKWOOD: Yes, it does.
MR. WALKER: Does anyone present wish to
examine what has been marked as City's Exhibit D?
Seeing none, City's Exhibit D is entered
into evidence.
I will hand you what has been marked as

1
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11
City's Exhibit E and ask if you recognize it and if so,

what is it?

MS. KIRKWOOD: 1It's a copy of the Proper-
ty Maintenance Adopting Ordinance.

MR. WALKER: Does anyone wish to examine
what has been marked as City's Exhibit E?

Seeing none, City's Exhibit E is entered
into evidence.

Ms. Kirkwood, in your judgment, does the
structure you've described constitute a public
nuisance?

MS. KIRKWOOD: Yes, it does.

MR. WALKER: Are you aware of any build-
ing permit applications for repair or demolition?

MS. KIRKWOOD: No. There haven't been
any as of yet.

MR. WALKER:
excused.

The next witness will be Mr. Jared Agee.

State your name and occupation.

MR. AGEE: My name is lared Agee and I'm
a building inspector for the City of University City.

MR. WALKER: Have you had the opportunity
to inspect the property at 15 Princeton?

MR. AGEE: Yes, I have.

Thank you. This witness is

1

MR. WALKER: When did you inspect? 2

MR. AGEE: My first inspection was in the
afternoon of the 1lst of February. My last inspection
was in the late morning of February 6.

MR. WALKER: Please describe what you saw
during those inspections.

MR. AGEE: I saw a lot of damage caused
by the fire to the roof system of the structure. A lot
of water damage caused by trying to put the fire out.
Missing sheathing from the roof, a hole in the back
Puddles of water appeared to have
Upon later

foundation wall.
been caused by the fire department, maybe.
inspection I noticed the water.

And basically the floor of the basement
had been dug out all the way to the bottom of the foot-
ing. There's some, it looks 1ike, uplift columns sup-
porting the floor causing the beams to bow in an upward
direction. There was a huge hole that appears to be an
opening for removing the material from the basement
floor out of the north wall of the structure. It
doesn't appear to be safe.

MR. WALKER: In your judgment, does the
structure you've described constitute a public
nuisance?

MR. AGEE: I believe so. te

Concannon & Jaeger St. Louis, Missouri (314) 421-1000
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13
MR. WALKER: Thank you. This witness is
excused. The third witness will be Mr. Gene
Holdenried.
MR. WALKER: Please state your name and
occupation.
MR. HOLDENRIED: Gene Holdenried,

Property Maintenance Inspector for U City.
MR. WALKER: Have you had the opportunity
to inspect the structure at 15 Princeton?
MR. HOLDENRIED: Yes. I have inspected
multiple times there.
MR. WALKER: cCould you describe the con-
dition of the property, adding or deleting any infor-
mation provided by the other two witnesses.
MR. HOLDENRIED: There's not much that I
can add. The property is in a dilapidated state. It
is a public nuisance and a danger to the public's safe-
ty, health, welfare.
MR. WALKER: Are you aware of any build-
ing permit applications for repair or demolition?
MR. HOLDENRIED: No, I'm not.
MR. WALKER: 1In your judgment, does the
structure at 15 Princeton constitute a public nuisance?
MR. HOLDENRIED: Yes.
MR. WALKER: Thank you, Mr. Holdenried.

14
The next witnesses will be from the prop-

erty owners of 15 Princeton.

MR. WALKER: would you please state your
name for the record, and your interest in the property
Jocated at 15 Princeton.

MS. PERVIS: Deborah Pervis. I'm the
owner of the property at 15 Princeton.

MR. WALKER: Could you describe, essen-
tially, what your plan of action is, given what has oc-
curred and the condition of the property at 15
Princeton?

MS. PERVIS: well, we are working both
with the police -~ we've been working with the police,
the fire investigators, and the insurance investigators
to determine the cause of the fire. Wwe don't have an
answer to the origin of the fire at the moment. Last
Thursday the detective for the fire investigators told
me they are done with the house.

we were not allowed to do any cleanup at
the house, or do anything to the exterior -- or the
interior, for that matter -- while the investigation's
moving forward. This morning the insurance guy told me
that we can clean up the exterior of the property. But
we're still not allowed to touch the interior of the
property because there's an ongoing investigation into
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the origin of the fire.

MR. WALKER: Have they given you an indi-
cation of what the timetable will be for the completion
of their investigation?

MS. PERVIS: Originally they told me a
month, and it's been a month. My understanding is that
there was somebody out at the house as late as this
last Tuesday working on determining the origin of the
fire. So all I know is that we haven't been allowed to
do anything beyond board-up. That was the restriction

that we were given.

we could board the property up, but we
weren't allowed to do anything else to the property un-
til the insurance, and the bomb and arson investiga-
tions were complete. 1In the meantime we have had an
engineer in, we've had two construction companies in,
trying to make some determination for ourselves whether
or not the property can be rebuilt.

MR. WALKER: Now, in terms of the exist-
ing condition of the property, your plan is to clean it
up as soon as you've been authorized to do so?

MS. PERVIS: well, this week we're going
to get the exterior, the glass, the shingles, the
nails. Everything that's on the exterior of the build-
ing, we've now been given permission to take away from

16
the site. So we can get the exterior cleaned up. But

still, my understanding from both -- from our insurance
person, is that we're not allowed to touch anything in
the interior of the house because there's an ongoing
investigation.

MR. WALKER: 3Just for the information of
those present, I have a copy in my hand of the Notice
of violation, which has been signed by the City 1indi-
cating that if the property is not cleaned up by the
owner of the property then the City will do it. The
date of that order is -- Indicates failure to correct
all violations before march 7, '06.

so essentially, what this does is require
the owner to clean up the property by March 7 or the
city will do that, and put a lien on the property for
the cost of doing that.

MR. MULLIGAN: Do you want to make that
part of the record?

MR. WALKER: Yes.

(Thereupon, the reporter marked City's Exhibit

F for identification.)

MR. WALKER: So we're entering Notice of
violation for 15 Princeton as City's Exhibit F.

so just in terms of the cleanup, your
plan is to do that this week? . )

Concannon & Jaeger St. Louis, Missouri (314) 421-1000
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17
MS. PERVIS: Yes. We just got permission

Titerally this morning. But we still don't have per-
mission to do anything to the interior of the property.
And it is a situation where we would have Tiked to have
cleaned it up weeks ago, but we can't. we've been
told, specifically, not to touch that property.

MR. WALKER: Have they given you any in-
dication as to when they're going to authorize you to
go into the interior?

MS. PERVIS: No. Wwe've been in, because
we've gotten bids from engineers and construction com-
panies. But in terms of cleaning it up they're still
working on the origin of the fire.

MR. WALKER: Are those bids from engi-
neers and construction companies, are they with the
intent of rehabbing the property?

MS. PERVIS: Yes. Rebuilding the struc-
ture that's there, as opposed to tearing it down and
starting over.

MR. WALKER: what are the general cost
estimates you're receiving for doing that?

MS. PERVIS: we have one bid for 1.2
million, and one bid for 850,000.

MR. WALKER: So perhaps you can tell us
what action you propose to take? what about the in-

18
surance claim for the property?

MS. PERVIS: we've obviously filed for
insurance, and the insurance team -- They have sent in
a team of investigators who have looked, and have been
trying to determine the origin of the fire. That seems
to be where everything is at the moment.

we're working to figure out, "How did the
fire start?” we've talked to them. we've been inter-
viewed by them. we've cooperated with them. The bank
has cooperated with them. And we're awaiting the de-
cision, a final decision from them as to what the claim
amount is going to be.

MR. MULLIGAN: What is the coverage
amount?

MS. PERVIS: 400,000.

MR. MULLIGAN: So that's the maximum the

insurance company would pay out?
MS. PERVIS: That's right.
MR. MULLIGAN: And your estimates are for
850 and 1.27? ’
MS. PERVIS: Yes,
MR. MULLIGAN: Have you thought about how
the difference would be covered if you were going to
pursue that?

MS. PERVIS: Yes, we've thought about
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that extensively. we already had a construction -- we

knew that we were going to spend $250,000 on the house
to renovate it prior to the fire. So we already had
the construction loan in place to renovate the property
before the fire happened. so if you take 400 plus the
250 we were already intending to spend, then you get to
650.

And we have got -- A number of people
have sent us information about historic tax credits if
the is building renovated to that level, and then we
could get 25 percent back from the state, and some
other tax incentives.

So you can make the numbers work to do a
renovation on the building. The house is so historic-
ally significant. 1It's been such a trauma to get the
house in my possession so we could start the renova-

tion. It's the direction we would like to have.
MR. MULLIGAN: And there's a bank Toan on
the house right now, you mentioned that?

There 1is.
what's the amount of that?

MS. PERVIS:

MR. MULLIGAN:

MS. PERVIS: 600,000.

MR. WALKER: what other options, if any,
are you considering.

MS. PERVIS: Wwell, we're considering

20
tearing the house down. That seems to be -- there are

some people who believe that's the only way to save the
house. So we're considering that, I guess, as an op-
tion. we've had lots and lots of people contact us in
buying the property in the condition that it's in, for
them to take it over.

But, really we've had a month here, we've
been dealing with the fire investigators, and the in-
surance investigators, and doing the work from our per-
spective to try to put the numbers together to figure
out if it's realistic to rebuild the house.

MR. WALKER: So I'm trying to understand.
Your preference is to rebuild the house?

MS. PERVIS: Yes.

MR. WALKER: If that doesn't work, what's

option two from your point of view?

MS. PERVIS: Option two, I guess, is to
tear it down.
MR. WALKER: why wouldn't you consider
selling it to someone who is interested in rebuilding,

who had the funds to do that?

MS. PERVIS: well, if the property can be
rebuilt, and it's financially viable to do it, we want
to do it. So I think, if it's financially viable to do
that we want to do that, and we have the money to doas

Concannon & Jaeger St. Louis, Missouri (314) 421-1000
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21
it. If it's not financially viable to do it, I don't

know who else would want to do it. That's why that's
not the second option to sell it to somebody who wants
to do it.

I guess, unless it's a homeowner. 1Is
that what you mean? Maybe somebody who is going to
Tive there, it might be a T1ittle different situation.
But it's not really our first preference. our first
preference is to rebuild the house.

MR. WALKER: And then what? Do you in-
tend to Tive in the house, or is it an investment prop-
erty?
well, originally I intended
to live in the house. Then it drug on so long to get
control of the house that I don't know. I Jove the
house, and I can't rule out that I would want to live
there.

MR. MULLIGAN:
trol of the house.
issued recently --

MS. PERVIS: Yes.

MR. MULLIGAN: -- authorizing your, I
guess, business partner in this piece of property to
sell her interest to you?

MS. PERVIS: That's right.

MS. PERVIS:

You mentioned getting con-
There was a bankruptcy court order

22
MR. MULLIGAN: Has that been executed,

the deed, or are you in the process of doing that?

MS. PERVIS: We're in the process. It
actually, the order had happened the Tuesday before the
fire. So that week of the fire was the week I intended
to be able to do it. Then the bankruptcy court put it
off. After the fire happened the bankruptcy court put
a stay on executing the order to sell the house to me.

But now, on February 16, they sent a
notice again to the trustee allowing it to move for-
ward. And as soon as it goes the way -- how it goes
through the court, then I'11 be able to buy it. And I
brought a copy of that order.

MR. MULLIGAN: Do you have a contract
with your business partner in this?

MS. PERVIS: No.

MR. MULLIGAN: So there's no legal re-
quirement for your business partner to sell her inter-
est to you, other than she's -- it's been approved by
the court.

MS. PERVIS: Right. well, she's not --
Yes. The Court has forced this sale as an asset in her
bankruptcy, and so it will be a clean deed. If that's
your question. A clean deed to me for the sale of the
property.
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MR. MULLIGAN: And that will be issued by

the trustee, right?

MS. PERVIS: That's right.
MR. MULLIGAN: And that's expected --
MS. PERVIS: This order was from February

16, and they thought it would take a couple of weeks.
I would think it would be this week.

MR. MULLIGAN: Right. That's the way it
typically works. The trustee has to prepare the paper-
work.

Now, with respect to the value of the
Tand, have you had that appraised? The 400,000 in

coverage, that covers the structure; is that correct?
MS. PERVIS: Yes,
MR. MULLIGAN: There's also the land
which you would continue to own.
MS. PERVIS: That's correct.
MR. MULLIGAN: Have you determined what
the value of the land is?

MS. PERVIS: It's between 250,000 and
300,000.

MR. MULLIGAN: If you do rebuild, you
keep basically your existing shell, you --

MS. PERVIS: The stonework, right.
MR. MULLIGAN: And you rebuild it from
24

there. 1Is it your intent to live there, or is it to
sell it to somebody?

MS. PERVIS: I don't know yet. I can't
say either way. My thinking at the moment is that we
would resell it.

MR. MULLIGAN: Have you thought about
partnering with a developer or anybody else on this?

MS. PERVIS: Yes.

MR. MULLIGAN: Have you made inquiries on

it?

MS. PERVIS: well, several people have
called us. And then we had, kind of, a conversation
between another developer. And the bank, someone that
the bank knows, that's interested in doing it. And
I've gotten half a dozen calls from other people. So I
know that there are people out there that are inter-
ested in doing it.

It's just trying to get the numbers to-
gether to figure out what it's really going to cost to
do it, and just make the decision about whether or not
it's financially viable.

MR. WALKER: This house has been problem-
atic for quite some time. Perhaps you can give us a
Tittle background as to why that situation has existed?

MS. PERVIS: 1I'd be happy to. 1I think N

Concannon & Jaeger St. Louis, Missouri (314) 421-1000
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25
that it's terrible how it's been a problem for so long.

and I feel terrible about it, and I think that's one of
the reasons why I feel that the right thing to do for
the house is rebuild it.

The house was bought over four years ago.
we spent two years working to get the house plans, an
architect and plans and documentation put together.
And about the time that all of that was finished, the
numbers for what it was going to cost to rebuild it ex-
ceeded what my partner wanted to spend on the property
and we began a legal battle, I guess, you would say,
over control of the property.

And almost two years ago now, I started
paying 100 percent of the costs of the property. The
mortgage payment, the taxes, everything that it cost
for the house, and a lawyer to try to keep the house.
And then in the midst of that decision my partner de-
clared bankruptcy sometime last year. The house was an
asset in her bankruptcy.

so then the bankruptcy court had to be
involved in every decision that was made about the
house. And so we spent money with an attorney to con-
tinue to argue to get the property out of the bank-
ruptcy court. And that had happened one week before
the fire. And we had everybody lined up, starting with

26
the roofer. Because the roof was in bad shape, we had

to start with getting the roof straightened up before
we could get inside to start work on the property.

we had a full plan set and all of that,
and then the fire happened. So it's just been one
thing after another thing, and just lots and lots of
money to get control of the property. And it had just
happened when the fire happened.

MR. MULLIGAN: Wwhen did you purchase the
property?

MS. PERVIS:
but I don't. Four years ago.
years ago in February.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

I know I should know that,
I think it was four

It will be on that

title work, Exhibit A.

MR. MULLIGAN: So about four years ago is
your best recollection?

MS. PERVIS: VYes, sir.

MR. MULLIGAN: Do you recall the purchase
price?

MS. PERVIS: I don't. I believe it was
350 to 400, something 1ike that.

MR. MULLIGAN: Did you invest any money
renovating the structure?
MS. PERVIS: There was -- My former part-
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ner put together -- we worked with an architect, we got

plans together, and then there was work that had to be
done to get ready to do that work. Some demolition
work that was done. Some things that were taken out of
the property. The kitchen was removed. That sort of
thing. So there was some work that was done to the
property in that time.
MR. MULLIGAN:
spent, approximately?
MS. PERVIS: Maybe, including plans and
all the historical work, and the legal work, maybe
around 100,000.
MR. MULLIGAN: And you were able to get a
bank loan for at least 600,000 it sounds like.

Do you recall how much was

MS. PERVIS: That's right. Plus the con-
struction loan now to do the finish work.

MR. MULLIGAN: How long did you reside
there?

MS. PERVIS: I never lived there.

MR. MULLIGAN: Did anybody ever live
there?

MS. PERVIS: No. That's a shame, but no,
no one ever lived there.

MR. WALKER:
wish to add?

Is there anything else you
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MS. PERVIS: No.

MR. WALKER: Are any of the other repre-
sentatives from 15 Princeton going to speak?

MS. PERVIS: Unless they have something I
forgot, I don't think so. The project manager is here
because she was the one that had put together the whole
project to start before the fire happened, and had the
plan of work put together. I think she had talked to
your office about that before the fire happened.

so she could speak about what we were
planning to do before the fire. And now obviously, we
have all of that renovation work to do, and also, now,
all of the damage from the fire. we have a set of
plans and the bids, I guess. 1Is there anything else
I'm forgetting?

MS. NOLAN: we had put new glass in the
windows in December. we planned to put a new roof on
at that point in time. And we've only had 20 business
days since the fire to obtain bids for renovation and
new contraction of the new roof and everything else.
And we weren't even allowed to get into the building
for the first week and-a-half.

MR. WALKER: Mr. Mulligan.

MR. MULLIGAN: Just a follow-up. Have
you contacted the subdivision regarding any indenture
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